UNITED

NATIONS E

Economic and Social Distr.
. CGENERAL
Council

E/ C. 12/ 1994/ SR. 33
28 Novenber 1994

Oiginal: ENGISH

COWM TTEE ON ECONOM C, SOCI AL AND CULTURAL RI GHTS
El event h sessi on
SUMVARY RECORD OF THE 33rd MEETI NG

Hel d at the Pal ais des Nations, CGeneva,
on Wednesday, 23 Novenber 1994, at 10 a.m

Chai r per son: M. ALSTON

CONTENTS

Consi deration of reports (continued)

(a) Reports submitted by States parties in accordance with articles 16 and 17
of the Covenant

United Ki ngdom

This record is subject to correction.

Corrections should be subnitted in one of the working | anguages. They
shoul d be set forth in a menorandum and al so i ncorporated in a copy of the
record. They should be sent within one week of the date of this docunent to
the Oficial Records Editing Section, roomE. 4108, Palais des Nations, Ceneva.

Any corrections to the records of the neetings of the Conmittee at this
session will be consolidated in a single corrigendum to be issued shortly
after the end of the session.

GE. 94- 70185 (E)



E/ C. 12/ 1994/ SR. 33
page 2
The neeting was called to order at 10.10 a.m

CONSI DERATI ON OF REPORTS (agenda item 4) (continued)

(a) REPORTS SUBM TTED BY STATES PARTI ES | N ACCORDANCE W TH ARTI CLES 16 AND 17
OF THE COVENANT

Uni ted Kingdom (E/ 1990/ 7/ Add. 16; E/ 1989/5/ Add. 9; FE/ 1986/ 4/ Adds. 27 and 28;
E/ C. 12/ 1994/ WP. 13)

1. At the invitation of the Chairman, M. Steel, M. Astley, M. Phipps,
M. Fung, M. Tescod, M. Cheng, M. Wng and Ms. Doherty (United Kingdom

took places at the Committee table.

2. M. STEEL (United Kingdon), introducing his country's second periodic
report concerning rights covered by articles 10 to 12 dealing with the
Dependent Territories (E/ 1986/4/Add.27 and E/ 1986/ 4/ Add. 28), its second
periodic report concerning rights covered by articles 13 to 15

(E/ 1990/ 7/ Add. 16), and additional information concerning the second periodic
report on the rights referred to in articles 10 to 12 (E 1989/5/ Add. 9),
apol ogi zed for the delay in subnmitting the reports, which was due to the fact
that, because of their small size and linmted adm nistrative capacity, the
Dependent Territories were encountering great difficulties in preparing
reports for United Nations treaty nonitoring bodies. The United Ki ngdom
Covernment was doing its best to overcone the problem However, in the
Dependent Territories for which the United Ki ngdom Governnment was responsi bl e,
there were 16 different jurisdictions with different judicial and

admini strative systenms and | aws. Moreover, different governnent departments
were responsible for different aspects of the material to be covered. Answers
had been supplied in witing to the Cormmittee's |list of 38 issues to be taken
up in connection with the consideration of the second periodic reports on
articles 10 to 12 and 13 to 15 (E/ C 12/1994/Wp. 13). Since many of the issues
rai sed concerning the netropolitan territory of the United Kingdomrelated to
education, a senior official fromthe Departnent of Education had been

i ncluded in the del egation. Anong the Dependent Territories Hong Kong was a
speci al case, and the Conmittee attached particular inportance to the

i mpl ement ati on of the Covenant there. The CGovernnment of Hong Kong had
therefore sent a nunmber of senior officials to respond to any questions. |[f
t he vari ous nenbers of the delegation were unable to reply to any question

i medi ately, answers would be sent in witing as soon as possi bl e.

3. H s Governnent had no reason to be ashaned of the reports which he was

i ntroducing, since it had always done its best to ensure that the provisions
of the Covenant were respected as fully as possible both in the United Ki ngdom
itself and in its Dependent Territories. There were, however, shortcom ngs,
and his CGovernnment regarded the reports which it subnitted to the Conmittee
not merely as a means of recording its successes but also as an opportunity to
identify the areas where inprovenents were needed and to explain what it

i ntended to do about them Any criticismwould be exam ned carefully, and the
Conmittee woul d be kept fully informed of the neasures taken



E/ C. 12/ 1994/ SR. 33
page 3

4. M. PH PPS (United Kingdom) said that it nmight be helpful if he described
t he organi zation of the education systemin the United Ki ngdom since nany of
his del egation's answers to the Conmittee's questions needed to be understood
in the context of that system

5. The educati on systemwas not uniformthroughout the United Ki ngdom
There were sone differences between Engl and, Wl es, Scotland and

Northern Ireland. However, the main features applied everywhere. Children
nmust attend school full-tine or receive a conparable education at hone or

el sewhere between the ages of 5 and 16. Parents night choose to send their
children to sone form of nursery education before that age. After age 16
pupils mght stay on at school until age 19 or go to a further education
col l ege to pursue an academic or vocational course. Thereafter they m ght
conpete for a place at a university or other higher education institution for
academ c or professional study or continue vocational study at a coll ege.
There were opportunities to return to university or college for continued
education throughout adult life. The Open University played an inportant part
by providing a wi de range of courses through di stance | earning.

6. The central Government did not manage i ndividual schools, colleges or
universities, nor did it appoint teaching or other staff or choose which
students to admt. The Governnent did not dictate exactly what shoul d be
taught or how it should be taught.

7. Those were the main common features of the education systemthroughout
the United Kingdom He would now |ike to describe sone features of the system
in England that were particularly relevant to the questions the Comittee had
raised with regard to the United Kingdom s second periodic report. \Were
necessary, he would nention any significant differences that applied in Wil es,
Scotland or Northern Irel and.

8. First, within an overall |egal and administrative framework set by the
central CGovernnment of the United Kingdom decisions about what courses to

of fer, who should be adnmitted to particular institutions to study particul ar
courses, how nuch to spend on themand with what priorities were all matters
largely for local decision-nmakers. The central Government's policy was to
create a systemwhich offered different types of education, scope for parents
and students to choose the particul ar education they thought appropriate for
them and publicly available information on educational opportunities and
performance at schools and coll eges so that they coul d exercise their choice
on a rational basis. As part of that policy of diversity and choice, there
was a flourishing sector of independent, privately funded and fee-charging
school s and col | eges al ongside the publicly funded system nai ntai ned by
central and | ocal Covernment.

9. Second, within the publicly funded sector decisions were devol ved

wher ever possible down to the lowest |local level. Oten that neant the |eve
of the individual school or college rather than that of |ocal or regiona
CGovernment. The | ocal government institutions for a region, county, city or
district were increasingly seen as bodi es which enabl ed others to make
provision at the local level rather than as directly providing all the
services thensel ves. That approach to the enabling function of |ocal
government underlay the current process of reorganizing | ocal governnent



E/ C. 12/ 1994/ SR 33
page 4

structures. Together with efforts to inprove the efficiency of the public
sector, the approach had al so pronpted neasures to encourage the
contracting-out of services to the private sector on a conpetitive tendering
basis. Wthin that framework Engl and and Wal es now had a system of |oca
management of schools, with increased powers given to their governing bodies
and budgets del egated to themby the | ocal education authorities for their
area. There were broadly conparable provisions in Scotland and

Northern Ireland. The Governnent had al so i ntroduced arrangenents for
schools, if they chose, to opt out of local authority control and becone
entirely self-governing grant-nmaintained schools, with funding froma centra
gover nnent agency and increased freedom

10. Third, the central Government still had an inportant role in determnining
the overall anount of funding available for the education service nationally
and how it should be distributed to the local level while |eaving the |oca
authorities and schools and colleges free to decide upon their priorities
within the imts of the suns available. The central Covernnent also set
certain standards, stipulated mnimumrequirenments that all institutions nust
neet, and offered gui dance on how institutions mght carry out their
responsibilities, in order to pronote the hi ghest possible educationa

achi evenents, to safeguard children's welfare and to ensure accountability to
parents and the public through information on school and coll ege perfornance.
The aim however, was to keep bureaucracy and central Government intervention
to the mninum necessary for those purposes. The National Curriculumin

Engl and and Wal es, and the conparabl e arrangenents in Scotland and

Northern Ireland were exanples of that. The National Curriculumin England
and Wal es statutorily prescribed which core and foundati on subjects nust be
taught, the programmes of study to be foll owed at each stage, and the
arrangenents for assessing pupils' achievenents. However, it did not
prescri be teaching methods or textbooks and its statutory requirenments had
recently been slimed down to give schools nore freedomto decide howto
tackl e the core and foundati on subjects and what additional subjects and
options to offer, especially for the 14 to 16 age range, once the basic
statutory requirenents had been satisfied. School inspection arrangenments had
been inproved in order to nonitor school performance nore effectively.

11. He then briefly sumrmari zed the comments nmade by the United Ki ngdom
Covernment inits witten response to the points concerning the education
systemrai sed by the Committee in its list of issues (E/C 12/1994/W,.13). As
far as the arrangenents for children to learn their nother tongues were
concerned, the central Governnment had provided for the inclusion of a range of
mnority |anguages in the National Curriculum Those and other | anguages
could also be taught in schools at the latters' discretion outside the
National Curriculum Moreover, mnority groups thenselves coul d organi ze
teaching in those | anguages outside the fornal school system The centra
Governnent al so provided substantial additional resources for speciali st
teachers of English as a second | anguage to enable minority group children to
mast er the | anguage and to gain access to the whole curriculum

12. Wth regard to collective bargai ning arrangenents for settling teachers
pay and conditions, the Governnment had al ready given an assurance that the new
teachers' pay review machinery would not be applied in practice so as to
hanper the freedom of collective bargaining. |In fact, the great majority of



E/ C. 12/ 1994/ SR. 33
page 5

the teachers' unions in England and Wal es had endorsed the new pay
arrangenents, which the Governnent believed would neet the concerns raised by
the 1LO Comm ttee of Experts.

13. H s Governnment accepted that the | ow | evel of nuneracy anong

United Ki ngdom workers constituted a problem although it believed that it was
not significantly worse than that found in many other industrialized
countries. Steps were already being taken to remedy the situation, both

t hrough greater enphasis on mathematics in the National Curriculum and through
the work of the governnent-funded Adult Literacy and Basic Skills Unit.

14. The United Ki ngdom Government al so recogni zed that there had been a

pr obl em concerni ng the nunmber of children permanently excl uded from school

It had taken several neasures to cope with it - for exanple, by abolishing the
category of indefinitely excluded pupils and by giving guidance to schools on
the range of |esser sanctions which could be used to deal with problens of

di sci pli ne and behavi our

15. The variety of measures taken to conmbat the extent to which racia

di scrimnation di mnished the educational opportunities of students from
mnority groups included legislation to outlaw racial discrimnation in
educational institutions and steps to recruit teachers fromthe mnority
conmunities and to prepare all teachers to cope with the range of cultura
experience in all subjects. Schools had al so been given gui dance on ways of
dealing with racial attacks and harassnent.

16. The Government had al so taken action, through |egislation and the
provi sion of guidance, to strengthen the provisions nade in nai nstream school s
or el sewhere for children who had been in the care of |ocal authorities.

17. Most of the disparities in per capita spending within different schools
resulted fromlocal decisions on needs and priorities. |In connection with the
pronpt assessnent of children with special educational needs, the Governnent
had recently introduced new | egi slation and a detail ed code of practice to

i mprove the provision made for children with special needs, whether they were
in mainstreamor in special schools, and to speed up the assessnent of their
needs.

18. M. STEEL (United Kingdom) said that he would attenpt to anplify his
country's witten replies to the issues raised by the Cormmittee. As to the
request in issue No. 1 to cite specific laws that had been changed to enabl e
the United Kingdomto conply with its obligations under the Covenant, the
CGovernment had not found it possible to legislate specifically to that end, as
the greater part of the Covenant's provisions did not |end thenselves to
translation into | egislation, but were statenents of principle and objectives
and descriptions of processes and attitudes. None the less, his Governnent
had provided in its witten response a sanple list of recently enacted

| egi sl ati on which showed that policy and practice were generally in line with
the intentions of the Covenant. Regarding neasures that had been taken to
pronote self-rule in the Dependent Territories and to enhance their awareness
of and ability to exercise econonic, social and cultural rights as enshrined
in the Covenant (issue No. 2), all the Dependent Territories had
denocratically and popularly elected | egislative bodies to which their



E/ C. 12/ 1994/ SR. 33
page 6

executive branches were broadly accountable; they were all in effect self-
governing in internal matters. The United Ki ngdom Government renmained in
charge of external affairs and defence, and in some cases the CGovernor of the
territory retained responsibility for certain other internal matters such as
internal security, the civil service and, in cases where it was a problem
such as in sone of the Caribbean territories, for international financia
services. Those arrangenents had the force of law in the Constitution of each
territory, which was anended periodically by agreement with the bodies of
political opinion. One exanple was the current Constitution of the

Caynman |slands, the most recent anmendnent to which had been determ ned by the
outconme of an election. As to proceedi ng beyond sel f-governnent to

i ndependence, his Governnment would not stand in the way of any territory

wi shing to becomre i ndependent to do so, nor was it right to press any
territory into i ndependence against its wishes. There were, however, sone
territories for which i ndependence woul d never be the practical option,
including Pitcairn and St. Hel ena, because of their size, position or
financial circunstances. Special problenms were posed by the Fal kl and | sl ands
and G braltar, where international political reasons nmade i ndependence not a
viable option. That was not because the United Kingdom denied a demand for

i ndependence but because other circunstances made such a dermand unrealistic.

19. M. SIMVA asked whether the governnent's response to the request for
exanpl es shoul d be of specific laws enacted to conply with the Covenant read
optimstically, in the sense that the Covenant had had an inpact on updating

| aws and administrative practices, or less optimstically to nmean that the
Covenant was nerely an unbrella of which no one was aware. He asked whet her
there were any tangi ble instances in which the Covenant had actually been
taken into account in the legislative process. Regarding the neasures to
pronote self-rule he asked whether the United Kingdom considered that in 1994,
290 years after the signing of the Treaty of Urecht, it felt that its answer
with regard to G braltar was still sufficient. That answer read as foll ows:
"As regards G braltar, any changes to its status would have to take account of
the provisions of the Treaty of U recht which established British title to

G braltar. The sanme Treaty al so gave Spain the right of 'first refusal' if
G braltar ceased to be British. |ndependence is therefore not an option,
unl ess Spain is prepared to agree." The International Court of Justice had

handed down an opinion regarding Namibia in 1971 as well as in other cases in
which it stated that treaty provisions nmust be read in |light of present
circunstances; that principle made 300-year-old treaty provisions inoperative.
Self-deternmination was a principle of jus cogens, and therefore, unless Spain
agreed that self-determination was still not an option for G braltar, he
wondered if the United Ki ngdom response was still applicable.

20. M. STEEL (United Kingdon) said that the optimistic interpretation with
regard to his Governnent's response to the request for |egislative exanples
was the correct one. There were cases where in the formulation of policy, the
Covernment was aware of and consciously gui ded by the provisions of the
Covenant and ot her human rights instrunents. He doubted if there were any

rel evant government departnments which were not aware of the Covenant, and in
any case the present process of reporting to the Committee was a very
effective way of ensuring their awareness. He could not, however, say that
particul ar nmeasures had been taken to conmply with the Covenant. Regarding

G braltar, the provision of the treaty giving Spain the right of first refusa



E/ C. 12/ 1994/ SR. 33
page 7

was still binding and operative and therefore constituted an inhibition on
G braltar's proceeding to i ndependence, which could only be renoved with the
agreenent of the Spanish Governnent. For all practical purposes in interna
matters, however, G braltar had self-rule.

21. M. WMR ZAMBRANO said that while the Committee was well aware of the
conplications posed by the Treaty of Urecht, the United Ki ngdomresponse wth
regard to Gbraltar did not really informthe Conmttee as to what its policy
was with regard to self-determination. |t was a nuch nore conplicated
guestion than sinply an issue between the two Governnents in question. The
Mal vi nas, although a simlar issue, in fact was totally different.

22. M. STEEL (United Kingdon) said his Government had no desire to be an
obstacle to the wishes of the people of Gbraltar if indeed it were their

wi shes to proceed to independence. However, G braltar could not be | ooked at
inisolation; it had a geographical and historical problem part of which was,
in a wrd, Spain. The Spanish claimto sovereignty over Gbraltar was a
factor. Hi s CGovernment was constrained by a valid international obligation
not to facilitate i ndependence unless Spain concurred. Since it did not
concur, Gbraltar nust remain a British dependent territory for which the
United Kingdomwas internationally responsible, meaning that certain powers
had to be reserved to the United Kingdom Short of that, the Governnent had
facilitated the full est possible enjoynent by the people of G braltar of

i nternal self-government. External factors prevented the process of
self-determination fromreaching its ultimte conclusion, nanely,

i ndependence. Self-determ nation and i ndependence were neverthel ess not
necessarily synonynous. As to the Fal kland Islands, there was absolutely no
desire anong the popul ation to proceed to i ndependence. That popul ation
consi sted of 2,000 honmbgeneous people who had a very |large neasure of interna
sel f-government and did not w sh for independence. The United Ki ngdom
Covernment was not standing in the way of a demand for independence because
there was no such demand. |ssue No. 3 concerned the extent to which account
had been taken in the preparation of the various parts of the report of the
concerns and vi ews expressed by the public and non-governnental organizations
(NGGs), including in the relevant territories. There was no set practice
either in the United Kingdomor in nost of the Dependent Territories for

i ncludi ng nenbers of the public and NGOs in the preparation of the report. In
some Dependent Territories, there was very cl ose cooperation between the

rel evant governnent departnents and nenbers of the public and NGO bodi es.
There were al so Dependent Territories with very m nuscul e popul ati ons where
there was no great distance between governnment machi nery and NGOs.
Consequently, assessnents by government departnents necessarily reflected an
i nput from public opinion. As to question issue No. 4 concerning the steps
bei ng taken by the CGovernment to ensure that the contents of the reports were
bei ng wi dely dissenminated and that the reporting procedure was fulfilling the
function of focusing attention and debate on the inplenentation of the rights
guaranteed by the Covenant, the text of each report was nmade available in the
library of the House of Conmons, thereby ensuring its availability to the
public and the press. In sonme Dependent Territories those texts were

avail able, while in others they were not. Hi s Governnment recogni zed that they
could be subject to criticismfor that and would give active consideration to
i mproving the practice.



E/ C. 12/ 1994/ SR. 33
page 8

23. M. TEXIER asked to what extent NGOs had participated in the preparation
of the report, noting that certain organi zations from Hong Kong had hoped to
comment on it before it was sent on to the Conmittee but that the request had
been refused. None the less, a contrary position had been adopted by the
United Kingdomwith regard to its report to the Conmittee on the Elimnation
of Discrimination against Wnen. He asked why account was not taken of the
conments made by NGOs, given that there was a |arge group of NGOs and that the
NGO participation contributed to the national debate on the issues before the
Commi ttee.

24, M. SIMVA asked whether the United Ki ngdom Governnent had invited NGOs
active in the Dependent Territories to nake their views known during the
preparation of the report, why its approach appeared to differ fromthe one
taken for the preparation of the nost recent report for the Conmittee on the
Elim nati on of Discrinination agai nst Wnen and whet her NGOs woul d be al | owed
to contribute to the preparation of the United Kingdom s first global report.

25. M s. BONOAN- DANDAN agreed with the two previous speakers; the sane
applied for Northern Ireland, where there had been no national debate on the
preparation of the report and where the opinions of the disadvantaged nenbers
of society had not been heard. She suspected that there was little awareness
in the United Kingdom of the International Covenant on Econonmic, Social and
Cultural Rights, because no effort had been nade to disseminate its nessage,
and she asked how the United Ki ngdom planned to inprove the situation in the
future.

26. M. CGRISSA said that the popul ati on of Hong Kong shoul d Iikew se be
consulted in preparing the report, because their future rights were at stake.

27. M. STEEL (United Kingdonm said that when they prepared their report,
States parties nust give their own position: it was not practicable to
reflect their differing views of NGOs. That did not nean that the opinions of
NGCs and ot hers should not be taken into account, and the United Ki ngdom
sought to do so in the Dependent Territories. |In fact, direct input froma
variety of public opinion sources, including NGOs, was a daily fact of life.
But it was difficult to see how the report could be made into a joint
enterprise.

28. He could not say whether a different approach had been used in preparing
the report for the Commttee and the report to the Cormittee on the
Elimi nati on of the Discrimnation agai nst Wnen

29. M. SIMVA apol ogi zed if he was overstating the remarks of the
representative of the United Kingdom but the latter had seened to be
suggesting that his had been the only sensible way to deal with NGOs, which,
as he had appeared to inply, were nothing but gadflies, critics and

| eft-wi ngers. Accordingly, he drew the attention of the representative of the
United Kingdomto the general coments adopted by the Conmmittee in 1989, in
which it had stated, that one of the objectives of the reporting process was
to facilitate public scrutiny of government policies, it had wel coned the fact
that a nunber of States parties had encouraged i nputs by non-gover nnent al
groups into the preparation of their reports under the Covenant and it had



E/ C. 12/ 1994/ SR. 33
page 9

noted that other States had ensured the w despread di ssem nation of their
reports with a viewto enabling conments to be nade by the public at |arge
(HRI/GEN 1/ Rev. 1, para. 5).

30. M. STEEL (United Kingdon) said that he did not share the sonewhat
cynical interpretation of the previous speaker as to the val ue of dial ogue
with NGOs in the preparation of reports. Wth regard to the Covenant's

di ssenmi nation, he said that the United Ki ngdom woul d gi ve thought to how it
could be inproved in the future.

31. As to the assertion made in issue No. 5 in respect of article 2.2 of the
Covenant dealing with non-discrimnination that wonmen in the United Ki ngdom
earned 25 per cent less than their male counterparts in conparabl e positions,
he said that that was incorrect: in fact it was unlawful to pay a wonen | ess
than a man for the same work or for work of equal value. Adnmittedly, wonen
were enpl oyed di sproportionately in | ower paid occupations.

32. Ms. VYSOKAJOVA asked whet her teachers received special training on how
to respond to the needs of disabled children in mainstream school s and whet her
a support infrastructure was avail abl e, whet her disabl ed persons had the sane
opportunity to attend secondary school and university as others, whether
school buil dings were accessi ble for wheel chairs and whet her books were

avail able for blind children

33. M. WMR ZAMBRANO asked what the United Kingdoms policy was with regard
to the teaching of |anguages other than English.

34. M. CEAUSU, referring to issue No. 13, said that a grow ng tendency had
been noted to solicit voluntary contributions fromparents. That tended to
pl ace children frompoor fanmlies at a di sadvantage and create disparities in
expendi ture from one nei ghbourhood to the next. He asked the representative
of the United Kingdomto coment on that natter

35. M. PH PPS (United Kingdom) replying first to Ms. VWysokajova, said that
it was the United Kingdom s policy to encourage disabled pupils to attend

mai nstream school s, where practicable. Teacher-training focused on

hei ght eni ng an awar eness for, and devising ways of neeting, the needs of such
children in mai nstream schools. Were that was not possible, provision had
been made for assisting disabled children in special schools, and a
substantial programme of funding had been introduced to that end. In

Sept enber 1994, |egislation had conme into force to strengthen arrangenents for
di sabl ed children, and the United Ki ngdom woul d carefully nmonitor the inpact
of those new provisions.

36. As part of that policy, his CGovernment al so encouraged the disabled to
pursue col | ege-1evel education. Steps had recently been taken to inprove
access to college education for those with special |earning needs.

37. Wth regard to wheel chair accessibility, he pointed out that there were
nore than 20,000 schools and hundreds of colleges and universities, many of
themrather old, in England and Wal es al one. New buil di ngs must give priority



E/ C. 12/ 1994/ SR. 33
page 10

to providing access for disabled persons, but resources were limted for
noderni zi ng ol der structures. In view of the size of the educational system
and the age of many buil dings, such alterations would take some tine.

38. In reply to M. Wner Zanbrano's question on the teaching of minority

| anguages, he said that there was provision for |anguages |ike Wl sh but that
the Government's nmain priority was to provide an understandi ng of English as
t he conmmon | anguage of the United Kingdom and to ensure that children from
honmes where English was not spoken should be able to participate fully in
national life.

39. The Government, however, recognized that it was inportant for children to
have a know edge of the | anguage and culture of their comunities. The

Nati onal Curriculumtherefore included provision for mnority |anguages in the
choi ce avail able to pupils throughout the conpul sory period of schooling.

Provi sion naturally depended upon the availability of teachers and on the
demand. Some 200 minority |anguages were spoken in the United Kingdomand it
woul d clearly be inpractical to include themall in the school curricul um
However, minority communities were encouraged to make their own arrangenents
out side the school system for pupils and ol der people to | earn about the

| anguage and culture of their community.

40. In reply to M. Ceausu's question about the growi ng trend towards asking
for voluntary contributions to help neet the cost of schooling, he said that
the percentage of voluntary contributions in the total spending on schools was
very small, although he did not have any figures available. He was not aware
of any evidence that the trend was in fact growing. The |egislation
applicable to schools prevented them from charging for essentials and there
were restrictions on the charges that could be made for extra-curricul ar
activities and on the extent to which contributions nmight be invited if an
activity could not take place without them The principle was that education
for pupils should be free during school tinme. Walthier parents night
sometines wish to inprove the facilities available, but there were limts on
vol untary contributions for such purposes.

41. M. SIMVA drew attention to a report entitled Social Justice: Strategies
for National Renewal published by the Conm ssion on Social Justice, which he
had just received and whi ch had not yet been nade available to the nmenbers of
the Conmittee. That report stated that the United Ki ngdom educati onal system
of fered worl d-class standards for an elite of some 20 per cent of children

but continued to fail the rest. Along with Portugal, the United Ki ngdom had
the |l owest |evels of provision for the under-fives in the European Union

Only one in three children had access to publicly-funded nursery places, as
agai nst 95 per cent of French children. At prinmary school, children were
taught in classes larger than in alnost any other nodern industrial country,
whereas in private schools, attended by only 7 per cent of children in the

Uni ted Kingdom the pupil/teacher ratio was 1 to 11. Moreover, Japanese and
Gernman students were twice as likely to achieve the equivalent of two A-levels
as an English student, and there were shocking regional differences. One in
six young nen in Northern Ireland and Wales left school with no graded

exam nation results, and in the south-west the figure was 1 in 20. In 1991
one in five 21-year-olds had trouble with basic nmathematics and one in seven
with basic reading and witing. It was estimated that poor basic skills cost




E/ C. 12/ 1994/ SR. 33
page 11

industry £5 million a year in cancelled orders through clerical errors.

Only 7 out of 10 pupils achieved better than grade Cin the three core

subj ects of English, mathenatics and science, whereas 6 out of 10 French and
German pupils achi eved the equival ent grades. The report set out a |ist of
priorities for inproving matters, including the introduction of universa
pre-school education for three- and four-year-olds, coupled with new
investrment in child care, and of literacy and nuneracy targets for
seven-year-olds. It also suggested that basic skills programes shoul d be
targeted at the |ong-term unenpl oyed. He asked what the view of the

Uni ted Kingdom was on those issues and what was the overall state of planning
on the educational shortcom ngs that he had outli ned.

42. M. MARCHAN ROMVERO asked, in connection with the effectiveness of
religious tolerance in religious matters, whether the education budget
cont ai ned any provision for schools of specific religious persuasions. The
Conmittee had learned that in 1992 a United Kingdom court had denied financial
support to a school with a najority Miuslim governing body. Wre any religious
groups excluded fromthe State education budget?

43. M. PH PPS (United Kingdom) said that he would |ike an opportunity to
study the report of the Conmm ssion on Social Justice before responding to
M. Simma's question. It nmight well be that the reply woul d be sent in
witing |ater on.

44, However, with regard to the priorities referred to in that report and
hi ghli ghted by M. Simma, he said that there was greater provision for three
and four-year-olds at nursery school than might appear fromthe figures
usual |y quoted, since voluntary or private sector activities were not always
included in the statistics. There was, for instance, a thriving playgroup
noverent provi di ng education and care for substantial nunbers of children in
the relevant age range. Moreover, the figures given covered only full-tine
attendance, whereas part-time nursery schooling, which was nore appropriate
for younger children, was wi despread. The picture was therefore nore
optimstic than the statistics suggested.

45, Nevert hel ess, the Government recogni zed the need to do nore and the
Prime Mnister had set up a task force to identify ways of neeting the
conmitment to expand access to pre-school education and child care for three-
and four-year-olds.

46. Oh M. Simm's remarks concerning basic literacy and nuneracy skills, he
said that the new National Curriculumincluded programes of study designed to
i mprove literacy and nuneracy fromthe start and it set attainment targets for
the end of each stage of schooling. |In the recent revision of the Nationa
Curriculumthose targets had been nade nore denmandi ng.

47. The United Kingdom al so had a programe for devel oping adult literacy and
nunmeracy. The Adult Literacy and Basic Skills Unit, a CGovernnent-funded body,
provi ded information and advice to those giving courses. The Governnent was
very keen to tackle what was undeniably a problemin that area.



E/ C. 12/ 1994/ SR. 33
page 12

48. In reply to M. Marchan Ronero's question about support for schools of
particular religious faiths, he said that he could not at that stage give
figures for financial provision for such schools. There had | ong been

provi sion for churches and other religious groups to set up "voluntarily

ai ded" or "grant maintained" schools, for which financial assistance was
avail able fromthe Government both for capital and running costs.

49, There was no legislation barring any religious body from proposing to set
up a new school. However, all schools had to neet certain requirenents,

i ncluding those of the National Curriculum if they were to be publicly
funded. 1In setting up a new school, the pronoters had to justify the denmand
for it, and | arge nunbers of places nmust not be left enpty in existing schools
as a result. Certain constraints therefore existed, and he believed that that
had been the point at issue in the case of the Mislimschool referred to by
M. Marchan Romero. He woul d, however, need to refer to that particular case
if further information was required and in any case to provide figures, if
they were avail abl e, showi ng the support available for religious schools of

di fferent kinds.

50. Ms. JIMENEZ BUTRAGUENO said that in view of the declining birth rate in
the United Kingdomthe pupil/teacher ratio nmight have been expected to

i nprove. Had there been such an inprovenent in the United Kingdom and if so,
didit apply both to private and publicly funded school s?

51. M. PH PPS (United Kingdom) said that there had i ndeed been a steady

i mprovenent in the pupils/teacher ratio in the publicly-funded sector of
education in the United Kingdom partly because of a reduction in the
birthrate. However, the nunber of pupils had now stabilized and had started
to rise again. Mbdreover the percentage of pupils staying on at school after
the age of 16 had greatly increased in recent years. It was unlikely that the
pupi |l /teacher ratio would continue to rise in the publicly-funded sector, one
reason being the limted stock of teachers and the relatively nodest out put
fromteacher-training institutions; and al so because in a period of financia
pressures the CGovernnent did not consider inproving pupil/teacher ratios in
publicly-funded schools to be a magjor priority. It believed that the quality
of teaching and learning did not depend solely on the nunber of pupils in a
class. Cenerally speaking, class sizes in the United Kingdomwere relatively
snmal | and on the whol e manageabl e for teachers.

52. It was the case that in private schools the pupil/teacher ratio was
generally nore favourable. The CGovernnent did not regul ate pupil/teacher
ratios in private school s.

53. M. CGRISSA said that in many European countries schools had cl osed
because of a lack of pupils and children were sent to a few | arge school s,
thus involving the need for transport. He inquired who paid for schoo
transport in such cases in the United Ki ngdom

54, M. PH PPS (United Kingdom) said that there were quite el aborate
procedures in his country for closing schools, involving |ocal consultation
and deci sions by the | ocal governnent authority or in some cases where there
was opposition, by the central Governnent.



E/ C. 12/ 1994/ SR. 33
page 13

55. The Government's general policy had been to encourage | ocal education
authorities and schools to elimnate spare places. Until quite recently the
reduction in pupil nunbers nmeant that there was a grow ng problem of surplus
pl aces costing noney to maintain and thus representing a waste of public
resources. Cearly some pupils would be travelling further fromtheir hones
to the alternative schools available. There was anple opportunity for
opposition to be voiced if there were good educati onal or other reasons not to
cl ose a school, although he had no supporting figures, but in fact relatively
few school s had been closed. There was legislation requiring that public
funds should nmeet the cost of transport to an alternative school if the

di stance was beyond a certain lint, which differed for primry age and

secondary age children. |If the closure of a school resulted in a child having
to travel a distance beyond the linmits specified in the |egislation, the cost
was autonmatically nmet frompublic funds. In addition, |local authorities had

di scretion to subsidize the cost of transport over shorter distances where
there was no legal requirement to pay. Education authorities often paid the
cost of transport for a transitional period even without a |egal requirenent
to do so.

56. M. TEXIER inquired whether there were specific programes to help
illiterate persons who had gone through the nornmal education process.

57. M. PH PPS (United Kingdom) said that there was i ndeed a probl em of adult

illiteracy and innunmeracy. He had no figures for illiteracy anong adults, and
t here had been sone argunent about the exact figures since there were
different ways of measuring literacy and illiteracy. However the Covernnent

recogni zed the problem and was seeking to tackle it by inproving the
curriculumin schools so that fewer children energed fromthe school process
having difficulties with literacy and nuneracy. It was hoped that in tine the
National Curriculumwould help to deal with that problem A nunber of
nmeasures were available for adults. The Adult Literacy and Basic Skills Unit
hel ped to pronote the devel opnent of courses and approaches for tackling
illiteracy and i nnunmeracy anong adults and to encourage further education and
other institutions to provide a variety of courses in response to the need
identified. Mrreover, nmany enployers offered renmedial |iteracy and nuneracy
courses to their enpl oyees, an approach encouraged by the CGovernnent. One of
the difficulties was the reluctance of adults to admt to probl ens of
illiteracy and i nnuneracy. Part of the solution was, therefore, to nake it
easier for people to recognize that they needed help and to know where to go
for it. The Governnent had been trying to encourage greater understandi ng and
tolerance to elimnate the stigma of illiteracy, but the problem shared by a
nunmber of industrialized countries, subsisted. The United Ki ngdomwas very
anxious to learn fromthe experience of other countries that m ght have found
ways of dealing with the matter.

58. The CHAI RPERSON said that the Conmittee had now concluded its questions
on article 13 and requested the United Kingdomrepresentative to take up the
i ssues raised on article 15.

59. M. STEEL (United Kingdon), replying to issue No. 15 in the list of

i ssues (EC. 12/1994/Wp. 13), which asked how t he Governnment had sought to ensure
that the inplenentation of the Public Order Act 1986 did not in any way
violate its human rights obligations particularly in relation to the Covenant,



E/ C. 12/ 1994/ SR. 33
page 14

said that Part 3 of the Public Order Act, relating to incitenment to racial
hatred, was not intended to curtail legitinmate freedomof expression. Its aim
was to deal with words, behaviour or the distribution of literature which had

i mplications for public order. Each of the offences created by the

| egislation was conmitted only if the conduct in question was threatening or
abusive or intended or likely to stir up racial hatred. As the witten report
of the United Kingdom i ndicated, a nunber of safeguards were built into the
Act to ensure that prosecutions for such offences were not enbarked upon

[ightly.

60. The United Ki ngdom Gover nnent considered that the Act was perfectly
consistent with, for instance, article 19 of the International Covenant on
Cvil and Political Rights which guaranteed the right of freedom of

expression, subject to certain restrictions. It was ironical that the
guesti on was being put to the United Ki ngdom Governnent in the present context
because in other contexts the pressure on the CGovernment had been to nake the
provisions of the Public Order Act dealing with racial hatred nore severe. He
considered that in legislation and practice the right bal ance had been
achieved and that legitimte freedom of expression was respected.

The neeting rose at 1 p.m




